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ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 
 
December 22, 2021 
 
Title:  Healthcare Valuation and Strategic Advisory Services 
 
RFP # H22-0012 
 
1. General 
 

This addendum revises RFP documents.  This addendum is issued to respondents of record prior to 
execution of contract and forms a part of contract documents and modifies previously issued 
documents. Insofar as previously issued contract documents are inconsistent with modifications 
indicated by this addendum, modifications indicated by this addendum shall govern.  Where any part 
of the contract documents are modified by this addendum, all unaltered provisions shall remain in 
effect. 
 

2. Addendum Acknowledgement Form 
 
Acknowledge receipt of this addendum in the space provided on the Addendum Acknowledgement 
Form.  Proposers must include the signed form with their response.  Failure to do so will subject 
Proposers to disqualification. 
 

3. Changes and Clarifications 
 

A. Proposal Due Date Changed: From: 01/20/2022 by 2:00 p.m.  Central Time 
To 01/31/2022 by 2:00 p.m.  Central Time 

 
B. Response to Vendor Questions:  See Below 

 
4. Attachments - None 
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Responses to Vendor Questions 
 

 
Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

1 2. Purpose 

This section mentions "the Proposer 
must be able to provide adequate 
resources to perform a yearly audit of 
CCH physician contracts and/or other 
value based arrangements…" What is 
meant here by "value based 
arrangements?" Specifically, does this 
language refer to physician 
compensation arrangements, contracts 
the organization has with payors, both? 

Both.  This language refers predominantly 
to physician compensation arrangements 
but can include contracts with payors. 
Value based arrangements refers to the 
new value based arrangement protections 
that implicate AKS Safe Harbors or a Stark 
exceptions under the 2021 Final Rule. 

2 

4a. Scope of 
Services - 
Policy and 
Procedures 

What are the various components of 
compensation that need to be 
considered as part of the policy and 
procedure document? Is this an all 
inclusive document that covers clinical 
services, on-call pay, APP supervision, 
value-based compensation, 
administrative compensation, etc.?  

Yes, we envision an all-inclusive document 
that the proposer would identify all areas 
that need to be considered when valuing a 
contract for FMV, including but not limited 
to clinical services, on-call pay, APP 
supervision, value-based compensation, 
administrative compensation. 

3 

4a. Scope of 
Services - 
Policy and 
Procedures 

What are the typical compensation 
structures used (salaried, salaried with 
productivity bonus, shift-based 
arrangements, etc.)? 

Salaried is a large component as well as 
shift-based arrangements.  Productivity 
bonuses may be part of the structure in the 
future. 

4 

4b. Scope of 
Services - 
Strategic 
Advisory 
Services 

Can the organization elaborate on the 
scope of strategic advisory services that 
are needed as part of this arrangement? 

General business strategy and 
development of valuation services. 

5 4c. Training 

How many individuals will be 
participating in the training? Are these 
individuals focused on a single campus, 
or spread out throughout the various 
locations? 

Training can be virtual for any number of 
participants with approval for recording to 
share with internal employees and 
contracted employees of CCH only.  
Training needs to be at a level to be 
understood by business and clinical 
managers. 

6 
4d. Scope of 
Services - 
Annual Audit 

Has the group determined the number 
of compensation arrangements that will 
be considered as part of the annual 
audit? 

Not specifically but estimate 10-20. 

7 

4e. Scope of 
Services - FMV 
opinions, 
Physician 
Compensation, 
and Value-
Based 
Arrangements 

Can the organization outline the 
number of total arrangements it has by 
type of service (e.g., clinical services, 
on-call arrangements, lease 
arrangements, medical equipment, 
etc.)? 

No. A lot of clinical service agreements are 
blended with on-call arrangements.  Our 
focus is on clinical services, on-call, and 
lease arrangements. 
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Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

8 
5. First 90 
days, point c 

Is this a checklist to ensure that the 
policy is followed, or does the 
organization envision this as an FMV 
document that could be used to 
determine if a compensation 
arrangement is consistent with FMV? 

CCH envisions this as a FMV document that 
could be used to determine if a 
compensation arrangement is consistent 
with FMV and applicable law. 

9 

Required 
Services for 
FMV 
compensation 
analyses and 
service 
valuations 
(page 5 of 19) - 
Bullet 1 

To clarify, is the intention for a group 
like ours to review the actual job 
descriptions and responsibilities from 
an operational perspective, or as a 
relative reasonableness check when 
conducting a valuation of the particular 
role in question? Can you potentially 
elaborate more on this bullet? 

CCH intends that this would be a relative 
reasonableness check and additionally, 
CCH would like a staff resource available 
on-demand (remotely) and to assist with 
development/recruitment of internal 
resource to eventually perform this role 
internally.   

10 

Required 
Services for 
FMV 
compensation 
analyses and 
service 
valuations 
(page 5 of 19) - 
Bullet 3 

To clarify, is the intention for this bullet 
for a group like ours to define the hours 
and/or schedule for the various roles, or 
to evaluate whether the CCH-defined 
hours / schedules are reasonable based 
on what we're seeing in the market? 

Intention is for the proposer to evaluate 
whether the CCH-defined hours / 
schedules are reasonable based on what 
we're seeing in the market. 

11 3 
Is the anticipated start date of the 
engagement in March? 

April 2022  

12 4b 
Can additional details be provided on 
expectations regarding Strategic 
Advisory Services? 

General business strategy and 
development of valuation services.  And 
improvement of business management and 
contracting for clinical lines of services. 

13 4c 
Is there a preference for the training to 
be in-person or fully remote? 

Fully remote. 

14 4d 
How many providers or contracts does 
CCH plan to include in the annual 
audits? 

Not specifically but estimate 10-20. 

15 4d 

Does CCH want to have FMV opinions 
completed with the annual audits, or 
just a review of the selected 
agreements and confirmation they fall 
within the policies and procedures 
outlined? 

Just a review of the selected agreements 
and confirmation they fall within the 
policies and procedures outlined would 
suffice however for those contracts that 
fall outside of the policies and procedures 
outlined, CCH desires to have a subset 
include FMV opinions. 

16 4e 

What type of business entities does CCH 
foresee needing FMV valuation work 
completed on? (physician practice, ASC, 
land, etc.) 

Physician practice, locum tenens, academic 
affiliation agreements that include 
professional services, and leases/space 
sharing arrangements. 
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Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

17 4e 

What internal processes currently exist 
at CCH to evaluate physician 
compensation and value based 
arrangements? 

CCH seeks to develop new internal process 
for its contracted provider services, value 
based arrangements, and leases/space 
sharing arrangements. 

18 4e 
What internal processes currently exist 
at CCH to evaluate business 
enterprises? 

CCH seeks to develop new internal process 
for its contracted provider services, value 
based arrangements, and leases/space 
sharing arrangements. 

19 4e 
What is the estimated percentage 
breakdown of business valuations, 
comp valuations, real property, etc.? 

Vast majority compensation evaluations 
and very few real property/business 
valuations. 

20 4e 
Do you have a preference of summary 
valuation reports or detailed valuation 
reports? 

Please respond with the elements of a 
summary valuation and detailed valuation 
reports. 

21 6 
What is the approved or allocated 
target budget for this engagement? 

Unknown. CCH will review responses to 
determine budget for this engagement. 

22 7.6 

To include all assumptions in the Cost 
Proposal section, can CCH provide 
information regarding any anticipated 
travel required for the engagement?  

No travel required. 

23 
2, Purpose, 
and 4, Scope 
of Services 

Item 4(b) lists Strategic Advisory 
Services as one of the requested 
services. Would you please confirm that 
this request refers strictly to the 
statement in Sec 2 above,  "The selected 
Proposer(s) will initially be asked to 
provide strategic advisory services ... to 
develop a policy and procedure." Or, do 
the desired strategic advisory services 
pertain to broader matters in value-
based contracting etc.?  

The request was intended to illicit a 
response regarding other strategic advisory 
services that  might bring value to the goal 
of implementing a process to manage the 
clinical departments’ contracts. However, 
some of those goals may be future state. 
FMV policy and procedure and valuation 
services is the most important part of the 
scope at this time. 
 
The question is rather to assess what other 
services we may want to consider. 

24 1, Background 

Would you please clarify, what 
methodology, process and (if 
applicable) external provider(s) does 
CCH use for determining FMV of 
physician arrangements? What 
necessitated a change and the RFP?  

Professional Services are usually quoted to 
CCH as a percentage of FTE (actual 
compensation.  There is no incumbent 
vendor for determining FMV 
arrangements. There was no specific 
impetus or compliance concern 
necessitating the change. CCH desires to 
implement a standard practice to ensure 
all contracts are evaluated in a consistent 
manner across clinical departments. CCH 
has contracts that utilize multiple standard 
FMV sources depending on the specific 
arrangement. 
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Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

25 
Submission 
Deadline 

Will the CCH consider a 7 day extension 
to the deadline to submit responses due 
to the holiday season. This will ensure 
all vendors have adequate time to 
respond to the RFP.  

Proposal Due Date changed 01/31/2022 by 
2:00 p.m.  Central Time 

26 Background 

The Background section indicates that 
the arrangements involve those with 
other AMCs, physician groups and 
independent physicians.  Please confirm 
whether  CCH  directly employs 
physicians or other providers?  If yes, 
will their be any fair market value 
consulting services related to employed 
providers? 

CCH does employ its physicians directly. 
Yes, there will be market value consulting 
services related to employed providers. 
CCH contracts with other AMCs to provide 
the Medical Centers with consulting 
services by our employed providers. 
Likewise, we contract with other AMC to 
provide specialty consulting services in 
various specialties in our hospitals. The 
arrangements may also include locums, 
1099 individual consulting practitioners. 

27 Background 

Can you quantify the approximately 
number of financial arrangements are in 
place that would be subject to the 
annual review? 

Not specifically but estimate 10-20. 

28 Background 

Can you quantify the approximate 
number of NEW arrangements that may 
require a third-party FMV review in the 
course of a year? 

CCH seeks review of some existing and in 
process arrangements as well as new 
arrangements. Estimate 10-20 in the initial 
term of the contract. Many are small 
arrangements involving professional 
services by AMCs and individual consulting 
practitioners. Approximately 3 are larger 
contracts involving the procurement of 
professional services lines for multiple 
clinical departments. 

29 
Scope of 
Services 

With regard to the Development of 
Policies and Procedures, to what extent 
do policies and procedures exist at CCH?   

There are no existing written policies on a 
process for FMV of professional services, 
and leases/space sharing arrangements. 
These arrangements are reviewed on a 
case-by-case basis by CCH Legal and 
Compliance. However, CCH desires to 
implement a standard process that starts 
with the departmental business manager 
to instill a uniform practice  at the start of 
the contracting process. 

30 
Scope of 
Services 

With regard to the development of 
policies and procedures, Veralon 
defines this as consistent standards for 
requesting, approving, structuring, 
documenting, and monitoring financial 
arrangements with providers.  Is this 
consistent with CCH's expectations? 

Yes, that is consistent with CCH 
expectations.  
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Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

31 
Scope of 
Services 

Please define 4b) Strategic Advisory 
Services as listed in the Scope of 
Services section 

CCH included the reference to Strategic 
Advisory Services in the event CCH wishes 
to engage vendor in special projects as 
needed to support the compensation 
initiatives of CCH leadership. 

32 Section 1 
Do the CCH board of directors have a 
compensation committee? 

No. 

33 Section 1 

The RFP notes the valuation services will 
primarily focus on the provider and 
hospital-based service lines operated by 
CCH.  Of CCH's seven operating entities, 
which will be included within the scope 
of services? 

The majority of services would be for 
Stroger Hospital. Valuation services may 
extend to Provident. Proposer should 
expect minimal to no work out of our 
Health Plan Services department for the 
initial term of the contract. The focus for 
the initial term will be CCH hospitals. 

34 Section 1 

Does CCH intend to enter into 
professional service arrangements 
contracting CCH employed providers 
out to other institutions as well as 
contracting in external providers? 

Yes. 

35 Section 2 
Who is the current vendor for the RFP 
scope of services? 

There is no incumbent vendor. 

36 Section 2 

If there is a current vendor providing 
the RFP scope of services, what is the 
reason for seeking a new vendor 
through the CCH RFP process? 

There is no incumbent vendor. 

37 Section 4 
Please clarify if the scope of services 
includes or excludes FMV valuation 
services for providers employed by CCH. 

FMV valuation services for providers 
employed by CCH is included in the scope 
of services. 

38 Section 4 

Are the scope of services for physician 
compensation only or will it also include 
midlevel/Advanced Practice Providers 
(APPs)? 

Scope of services may also include midlevel 
and APPs but the majority are specialty 
physician services. 

39 Section 4 

How does CCH currently determine 
compensation for employed and 
contracted providers? Is there an 
existing FMV/commercial 
reasonableness policy for review?  

CCH Human Resources uses Sullivan & 
Cotter and other industry standard sources 
to determine compensation of employed 
physicians. For contracted providers, 
compensation is determined jointly with 
the external provider. CCH desires 
Proposer to list recommended resources 
used to determine provider compensation.   
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Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

40 Section 4 

Is there a base professional service 
contract in place now that needs to be 
reviewed and modified or does that 
need to be developed? 

CCH has a base professional services 
agreement that may be reviewed, but 
there is no uniform template in terms of 
compensation. CCH would consider the 
review of its template(s) in conjunction 
with CCH Legal and Compliance as  in scope 
for purposes of this RFP, with a primary 
focus on developing a standard 
compensation addendum for the 
professional services agreement. 

41 Section 4 

Does CCH currently have a non-compete 
termination clause included in all 
provider contracts?  If not – would you 
want to add it to any design/language? 

CCH does not have a standard non-
compete termination clause and does not 
seek to add one. 

42 Section 4 

What performance metrics do you have 
reliable data on now that you would 
want to be included in any 
compensation/FMV design or incentive 
plans for improved outcomes? 

CCH has some metrics including timesheets 
and invoices.  CCH desires Proposers input 
on recommended industry standard 
performance metrics and a reliable manner 
to validate the data. 

43 Section 4 

Is there a performance expectation of 
clinical hours worked per week for a 
full-time equivalent physician and APP 
you can provide? 

Clinic hours requirements depends on 
specialty. However, the majority of our 
arrangements require 1-2 days of clinic per 
week, on call time, supervision of residents 
(administrative time) and OR time for 
surgical specialties 

44 Section 4 

For the annual audit noted in section 4-
part d, what sample size of contract 
validations does CCH envision the 
vendor reviewing? 

10-20 for the initial term of the contract 
with the goal of becoming self-sufficient in 
subsequent years and train internal 
resources to conduct audits. 

45 Section 4 

What level of involvement and 
frequency do you envision the vendor 
providing for the scope of services 
outlined in section 4 part e? 

CCH anticipates significant work with 
regard to the development of a FMV policy 
and procedure and FMV and valuation 
training. CCH expects the initial frequency 
to be high in terms of reviewing existing 
services arrangements involving physician 
compensation, on-call agreements, and 
space sharing and lease agreements to 
identify areas of risk for CCH. After that 
initial review, the involvement of the 
vendor is expected to be on an as needed 
basis. The goal is to assess risk, develop 
policies and procedures, train, and 
ultimately serve as an ongoing resource for 
CCH on more complicated arrangements. 
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Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

46 Section 4 

What level of involvement do you 
anticipate in-house counsel will have 
with regard to the proposed scope of 
services?  E.g. validating compliance of 
the proposed arrangements with 
applicable laws and regulations. 

CCH anticipates substantial involvement of 
one of its in-house counsels with regard to 
the scope of services. However, it is the 
expectation of CCH that selected 
proposer(s) demonstrate knowledge of 
applicable law and regulation and the 
ability to explain such law and regulation 
clearly and concisely in the policy and 
procedure deliverable and in training. This 
is a key element of the evaluation process. 

47 Section 4 

Do you envision a need for the selected 
vendor to engage with an external 
counsel to include in the FMV a legal 
opinion on compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations?  If so,  is the 
expectation of this proposal to include a 
third-party service arrangement with an 
external counsel determined by the 
proposer? 

No, if a outside legal opinion is necessary, 
CCH will obtain directly. 

48 Section 6 
Does CCH have a preliminary budget in 
mind for purchasing the scope of 
services outlined in this RFP? 

Unknown. CCH will review responses to 
determine budget for this engagement. 

49 Section 7.2 
What survey sources do you currently 
use for valuation of services?  Do you 
have a preferred survey? 

Sullivan & Cotter, MGMA, and other 
specialty specific sources. CCH desires for 
proposer to opine on the pros and cons of 
survey sources as part of its training 

50 Section 8 

Prior to going live with the chosen 
vendor, please explain the procurement 
process.  For example, a security call, 
technical review, reference review, etc. 

As a government body, CCH will require 
the use of its standard contract, 
recognizing some amendment for 
professional services.  CCH requires 
completion of a security questionnaire to 
ensure compliance with HIPAA & HITECH. If 
Proposer intends to supply a software 
platform to support its services, please 
provide adequate detail for CCH review. 

51 Section 8 
Who from CCH and County will be a part 
of the evaluation committee? 

TBD. At a minimum,  representative from 
CCH procurement, CCH Compliance and 
CCH Legal, and one or more Chairs of CCH 
clinical departments will be part of the 
committee 

52 Section 9 
Please supply a vendor evaluation 
grading rubric or order of evaluation of 
criteria by importance. 

Knowledge and ability to apply federal 
regulation to your policy and procedure is 
of primary importance.  Ability to 
communicate this knowledge in plain 
language is also important. Credentials of 
staff is also key- Proposer may submit CVs. 

53 

Section 4 Do you have a system for physician 
contract review in place today? 

No, the purpose of this RFP is to develop 
such a process. 



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

 
Section of 

the RFP 
Question CCH RESPONSE 

54 

Section 4 How many physicians/specialties do you 
anticipate would require: (1) opinions 
(2) review? How many physicians will be 
impacted by the project? 

Estimate 20 specialties that potentially 
could require opinions and/or review.  
Some of our larger contracts with AMCs 
include the need for professional services 
in multiple specialties. Number of actual 
physicians impacted is unknown. 

55 

Section 4 Is there a compliance issue that is 
driving the need for this work? 

No. CCH seeks to implement a uniform 
compliant process to ensure compliance 
with regulation and law put to also 
standardize the process for efficient 
contracting 

56 

Section 4 What is the nature of your current 
compensation models? I.e., salary, 
salary plus bonus, productivity, shift-
based work, etc. 

The majority of compensation models 
include salary, medical malpractice (CCH is 
self-insured with umbrella policies) and 
shift-based and on-call work. The 
development of a compensation model 
and policy that that anticipates 
productivity should be considered in scope 
for the purposes of this RFP. 

 
 
  



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 
As required by the RFP, Proposers must submit this acknowledgement form with their response. One 
acknowledgement form per response, listing all addenda, is appropriate. 
 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
Addendum No.:  _____ 
 
 
 
Company Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Representative’s Name: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature:  ______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date:    ______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
END OF ADDENDUM 


